
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
August 5, 2010, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the June 24, 2010 Special Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of the Minutes of the July 1, 2010 Regular Board Meeting 
 
C. Approval of the Minutes of the July 8, 2010 Special Board Meeting 
 
D. Approval of the Minutes of the July 22, 2010 Special Board Meeting 
 







E. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 
Warrants 
 


F. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 
regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
  (1) Letter dated July 2, 2010 from the Sonoma County Water Agency re Water 


Rights Petition 
 
G. Adoption by title only of Ordinance 45, to amend policy 5040.20 re Board 


meeting recordings 
 


 
Please note: Correspondence received regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda 
is not itemized here, but will be attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and 
addressed with that item during the Board meeting. 


 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 


the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Surplus District Lands Workshop on July 22, 2010 (Est. 


time 15 min.) 
 
B. Discussion re Actual vs. Budgeted expenditures (4th Quarter, FY 2009-10, 


Operations and Capital) and County fund balances at fiscal year end.  (Est. time: 
15 minutes) 


 
C. Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 10-17, Overruling 


Protests and Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charges for the Sweetwater 
Springs Water  (Est. time 5 min.) 


 
D. Discussion/Action re Claim No. 2010-01, Tim Rossetti, 14703 Eagle Nest Lane, 


Guerneville (unaccounted for water).  
 
E. Discussion/Action re Board Goals and Objectives (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Est. time: 15 min.) 
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
 (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 40 min.) 


 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of 


Section 54956.9.   


 2







 3


  Name of case:  John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros, et al. 
    SCV 240790 
 
 B. Conference with re Real Property Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.8) 
  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack; Property negotiator: Unknown 
  Under negotiation: Terms and price 
 
 C. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: near Sweetwater Springs Road (Mt. Jackson) 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and T-Mobile 
 
 D. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: 14275 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville (Schoeneman Tank) 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Leslie Bahr 
 
 E. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
  District negotiator:  Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization:  Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 
 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
Board of Directors Meeting  
SPECIAL Meeting  
June 24, 2010 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Wanda Smith 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Jim Quigley 
  
Board Members Absent: Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
   
Others in Attendance:     None 
 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:34 p.m. 
 
 


II. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
 
None. 


 
 


III. ADMINISTRATIVE 


A. (6:34) Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 10-13, Revising Resolution 09-
22 to Include Main Replacement Work on Rio Vista Terrace in the Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency Grant Request and the District’s 2010-2015 CIP and 
Requesting an Amendment to the Redevelopment Agency Funding Agreement to 
Include the Additional Project in the Agreement Attachment 1 Project Summary for 
the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Director Wikle moved to Approve Resolution 10-13, Revising Resolution 09-22 to Include 
Main Replacement Work on Rio Vista Terrace in the Sonoma County Redevelopment 
Agency Grant Request and the District’s 2010-2015 CIP and Requesting an Amendment 
to the Redevelopment Agency Funding Agreement to Include the Additional Project in the 
Agreement Attachment 1 Project Summary for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011.  
Director Smith seconded.  Motion carried 3-0.  


 


 1







 2


 
ADJOURN 


 
The meeting adjourned at 6:37 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Steve Mack 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: _____ _______ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______  ______ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		III. ADMINISTRATIVE

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
July 1, 2010 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent: Wanda Smith 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Mike Gogna, District Counsel. 
      Glenn Berkheimer 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
The GM requested the following changes to the Agenda: 
 1. Move Item V-B (Board Goals and Objectives) to the end of the meeting 
 2. Delete Item VIII-A (Closed Session: Berry et al. vs. Korbel et al.) as there was 


nothing to report 
 3. Set a time certain for Closed Session of 7:30 p.m. 
After brief discussion, there were no objections. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Wikle 
seconded.  Discussion ensued .  Director Robb-Wilder withdrew her motion.  Director Wikle 
moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted except for Item III-B, Approval of the 
Minutes of the June 24, 2010 Special Meeting.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 
4-0, with Director Schaap abstaining as to Item III-A, Approval of the Minutes of the June 3, 2010 
Regular Board Meeting, because he was absent for that meeting.  The following items were 
approved: 
 


 1







A. Approval of the Minutes of the June 3, 2010 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. (Removed from the Consent Calendar) 
 
C. Approval of Operations Warrants/ Online payments/EFT payments/ Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 
D. Approval of Resolution 10-14, Updating signers to the Redwood Credit Union CD 


account to be Stephen Mack and Julie Kenny  
 
E. “Yes” vote on the proposed CSDA Bylaws Amendments redefining “voting 


members” and “non-voting associate members” 
 
F. Approval of Resolution 10-16, Approving a Contract for Audit Services with 


Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP for FYE 2010-13 
 


 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:35 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.) 


A. (6:35 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Surplus Lands Workshop on July 22, 2010.  The 
GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 


B. Discussion/Action re Board Goals and Objectives.  Earlier in the meeting, this item 
was moved for discussion after Closed Session.  


C. (6:45 p.m.) Discussion/Action re SSWD project list for the Community Development 
Commission’s (CDC) Area Needs Assessment.  The GM provided an overview of this 
item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


D. (6:52 p.m.) Discussion/Action re CIP Update (Approval of Resolution 10-15, Design 
and Construction Management Services for the Rio Vista addition to CIP IV-B, 
Project 2).  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Director Wikle moved to approve 
Resolution 10-15, Approving an Agreement for Engineering Services for CIP IV-B, 
Project 2, Rio Vista Amendment, and Authorizing the General Manager to Sign.  Director 
Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  


E. (6:55 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Introduction by title only of Ordinance 45, to 
amend policy 5040.20 re Board meeting recordings.  The GM provided an overview of 
this item.  Discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to introduce by reading of 
title only Ordinance 45, Amending Policy Number 5040.20 Regarding Audio Recordings 
of Board Meetings.  Further discussion ensued.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion 
carried 4-0.   


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:02 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided an overview and answered Board questions on the following subjects: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. River Flow 
5. Decision 1610 Change Petition Protest 


 2







6. CIP IV-B, Project 1 
7. CIP IV-B, Project 2 
8. Toilet Rebate Program 
9. In-House Construction projects 
10. Gantt Chart 
11. Change of media at the Monte Rio Treatment Plant 
12. Three-year lead and copper testing  
 
Board questions ensued. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (7:30 p.m.) 
 
At 7:30 p.m. President Quigley announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 7:31 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:53 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items was announced: 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 
of Section 54956.9 


 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros., et al.  
    SCV 240790 
  This item was removed from the Agenda earlier in the meeting. 
 


B. Conference with Real Property Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.8) 


 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
 District negotiator: Steve Mack; Property negotiator: Unknown 
 Under negotiation: Terms and price  


  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 C. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7. 
  Property: near Sweetwater Springs Road (Mt. Jackson) 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and T-Mobile 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 D. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957.6): 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (con’t.) 
 
B. (8:55 p.m.) Discussion/Action re District Goals and Objectives.  Brief discussion 


ensued.  This item was continued to the next Board meeting. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:56 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:56 p.m.) 
 


 3







 4


1. Adoption of Ordinance 45 re Board meeting recordings 
2. Minutes of the June 24, 2010, July 8, and July 22  Special Meetings 
3. July 22 Workshop on Surplus Lands 
4. Board Goals and Objectives 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:58 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:35 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:02 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (7:30 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of Section 54956.9

		 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros., et al. 

		B. Conference with Real Property Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.8)

		 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville

		 District negotiator: Steve Mack; Property negotiator: Unknown

		 Under negotiation: Terms and price 

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:56 p.m.)







		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:56 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
Board of Directors Meeting  
SPECIAL Meeting  
July 8, 2010 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Wanda Smith 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Ken McLean 
 Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap 
  
Board Members Absent: (None.) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
   
Others in Attendance:     Glenn Berkheimer (by phone) 
 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 


II. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:30 p.m.) 
 
None. 


 
 


III. CLOSED SESSION (6:32 p.m.) 
 
At 6:32 p.m. President Quigley announced the item for discussion in Closed Session.  At 6:32 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session. At 8:18 p.m., the meeting reconvened and the following 
action on the Closed Session item was announced: 
 
 A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6) 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 


 1







 2


 
 


Steve Mack 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: _____ _______ _ ______  
Sukey Wilder:  ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______  ______ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:30 p.m.)

		III. CLOSED SESSION (6:32 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Special Meeting  
July 22, 2010 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Wanda Smith 
 Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     (See, end of Minutes document) 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 


 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:35 p.m.) 


 
Public comment was made by Darrell Sukovitzen, Russian River Chamber of Commerce, re 
Kathy Wyrick, her efforts to form the Sweetwater Springs Water District, and a request not to sell 
property that she fought for. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.) 


A. (6:35 p.m.) Public Workshop regarding District Surplus Lands.   


 The GM provided and overview and PowerPoint presentation on the District’s large 
surplus parcels.  Questions ensued: 


 Ken Wells, Vice President of the Sonoma County Trails Council, made a PowerPoint 
presentation on behalf of the Monte Rio Recreation and Park District regarding a 
proposed Monte Rio Mountain Park. 


 Tom Ward, International Mountain Biking Association (IMBA), gave a short presentation 
on the importance of bike trails and IMBA support for building sustainable trails. 


 1







 Discussion ensued.  The Board provided their viewpoints on this item.  Further 
discussion/dialogue ensued between the Board, the GM and members of the public.*  
The Board made closing comments.  No action was taken.  


 * A summary of the workshop discussion is contained in the August 5 Board packet, Item 
V-A. 


 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:07 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  
 
 
ATTENDEES: 
 
* Darrell Sukovitzen (The Tree Climber) 
 Stuart Martin (Sonoma County Open Space) 
* Lenny Weinstein (Monte Rio) 
* Tom Ward (IMBA) 
 Dennis O’Rorke (Monte Rio) 
 Lee Torr, IV (Monte Rio) 
* Sherrie Althouse (Rio Nido) 
* John Uniack (Rio Nido) 
* Rick Coates (Cazadero) 
* Rich Holmer (Villa Grande) 
 Gretchen L. Mino (Monte Rio) 
 Ralph Bever (Glen Ellen) 
 Eli Stonebreaker 
 Justin Warren 
* Martin Newman 
 Spencer Lance 
 Peter Andrews 
 Justin Lacy 
 Roberta Pollard (Monte Rio Rec and Park District) 
* Lloyd Guccione (Guerneville) 
 Jack Robinson (Guernewood Park) 


 2







 3


 Gary Shannon (Duncans Mills) 
 Miguel Crawford (Sebastopol) 
* Nhu Le (Guerneville) 
 Suzanne Mayo (Guerneville) 
* Dennis O’Leary (Guerneville) 
* Ken Wells (Sonoma County Trails Council) 
 Jeff Smith (Monte Rio/Jenner) 
 Toni Tacoma (Monte Rio/Jenner) 
* Dan Fein (Monte Rio) 
* Brenda Adelman (Guerneville) 
* Elise Sokolay 
* Steve Sonnberg 
* Brian Grant 
* Miguel Crawford (Cyclist) 
* Carl Bastian (Horse Council) 
* Dan Horns (Backcountry Horsemen) 
 Steve Baxman (Monte Rio Fire / Monte Rio Rec and Park) 
 
* Spoke during the meeting 





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:35 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.)

		ADJOURN











SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-G 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: August 5, 2010 
  
SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 45,  AMENDING POLICY 5040.20 
RE BOARD MEETING RECORDINGS 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adoption, by reading of title only, Ordinance 45 which 
amends Policy 5040.20 regarding Board meeting recordings.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
This Ordinance was introduced at the July Board Meeting.  Policy 5040.20 directs that 
open sessions of Board meetings shall be tape recorded and “the recordings are public 
record and will be retained for a period of five (5) years.”   That wording implies that 
the meeting recordings must be destroyed after five years and also identifies a 
particular technology which we are no longer using.  At the June meeting Board 
Members stated that they felt they should have some discretion in keeping the meeting 
recordings longer than five years.  Ordinance 45 changes the last sentence of Policy 
5040.20 to read “the recordings are public record and will be retained for a period of at 
least five (5) years”, which gives the Board the requested discretion and also changes 
the wording in this section so that the recording technology can change with the times.   
 







ORDINANCE NO. 45 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AMENDING 
POLICY NUMBER 5040.20 REGARDING AUDIO RECORDINGS OF BOARD 


MEETINGS 
 
 


WHEREAS, currently Policy 5040.20 provides that recordings of District Board meetings 
shall be retained for five (5) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board is desirous of having the option to keep audio recordings longer than 
5 years to preserve District history and in-depth Board discussion of District issues  
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
 
Policy Number 5040.20 is hereby amended as follows:  


 5040.20 Open sessions of District Board meetings, both regular and 
special sessions, shall be tape audio recorded.  The Chairperson will announce that 
the meeting is being tape recorded, and the recording device will be placed in plain 
view of all present, so far as practical.  These recordings are public record and will be 
retained for a period of at least five (5) years. 


 
 
Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the 
date of its adoption by the Board of Directors.  
 
 
This Ordinance was adopted on August 5, 2010 on roll call by the following vote: 
  
 Jim Quigley    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 Victoria Wikle:    
 Wanda Smith:    
 Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______ 
     
           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 





		Item III-G -Destruction of Meeting Tapes Ordinance

		Item III-G.1 - Ord 45 Amending Board policy re audio recordings of meetings






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : August 5, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE SURPLUS DISTRICT LANDS PUBLIC 
WORKSHOP    
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation on a review of the public 
meeting on surplus lands held July 22, 2010, and other activities regarding Surplus 
District Lands and provide direction to the Land Management Committee and General 
Manager.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impact. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 


The District held a public meeting on the District Surplus Lands Strategy focusing 
on the larger parcels on July 22, 2010.  The meeting was well attended and 
included a presentation on behalf of the Monte Rio Recreation and Park District 
for transfer of the parcels behind the Monte Rio Terraces for purposes of creating 
a regional park, and there were many comments from the meeting participants 
regarding this particular proposal and the concept of the District transferring its 
surplus lands, generally.  Attached is Attachment A which is a summary of the 
meeting and includes my distillation of the many valuable comments and ideas 
presented at the workshop.  Board Members may recall other comments or may 
want to expand on some of the issues listed in the summary. 
 
Comments/Observations: 
 
Surplus lands.  In an email to Board Members I explained my perspective on 
the use of the term “surplus” which is that the district has surplus lands that it 
hasn’t formally declared surplus yet.  That will happen when we get to a place 
where we have a mutually agreeable transfer. 
 
The word “transfer” does not imply no cost.  I use this term to refer to lands 
changing ownership for any negotiated amount of money including $0 and fair 
market value as determined by an appraisal.  The use of the term “transfer” 
should not give the implication that the transfer would be at no cost to the 
transferee.  Regardless of the financial terms of any transfer, I believe all lands 
being transferred should have their market value determined.   
 
 
The word is out.  With the workshop and attendant publicity, post and prior, the 
word is out that the District has land available for other suitable purposes.  We 







DISCUSSION/ACTION RE: PUBLIC WORKSHOP 2   
August 5, 2010 
                                                                 


 


have done what we can in this regard and it is now up to others to present us 
with their ideas and for those ideas to be backed with details that meet the 
objectives of the District in its Surplus Land Strategy.   
 
One presentation/idea for larger parcels.  At the workshop only one 
proposal for use of District surplus lands was presented. The presentation by Ken 
Wells showed one idea with vision for the Monte Rio area and had support from 
most of the local and regional open space agencies and organizations.  However, 
it was not a formal proposal; the District has nothing more than a Power Point file 
describing it, and a fair amount of work is needed for it to get to a place where 
the District could consider it.  We have received no other communications 
regarding the transfer of the larger parcels.  With this concept and others that 
may follow the potential transferee will need to be the proponent of any transfer 
and complete whatever studies and investigations that are needed.   
 
Smaller parcels.  The workshop focused on the larger parcels and most 
comments were made in regard to those larger parcels.  However, the District 
has many more small parcels than large parcels, and some effort should be made 
with respect to them.  The Strategy calls for employing a local realtor to market 
the small parcels and it seems appropriate to do that now.   
 
Assessment of where we are.  The effort of looking into the District’s surplus 
lands is bifurcating into three areas which require separate approaches:  
 


• The larger parcels which may be appropriate for some open space use.  
Currently we have received a presentation, called Monte Rio Mountain 
Park, on the parcels behind the Monte Rio Terraces that might be part of a 
regional park effort that would bring many economic benefits to the area, 
and this proposal could be a model for the use of the other larger parcels.  
Many details need to be worked out before the Monte Rio Mountain Park 
becomes a reality.  There has been no formal proposal and it’s unclear 
what all needs to be done and in what order.     


 
The Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District has 
offered to help with this proposal in a letter dated July 20, 2010 and other 
agencies and organizations have expressed their support and willingness to 
help.  Perhaps a next step is availing the services of the regional and local 
agencies and organizations to see what needs to be done, and how to get 
those activities accomplished. 


 
• Riverfront parcels which may be appropriate for public access.  Recently, 


more attention has been on the larger parcels, but the riverfront parcels 
may have the more immediate benefit in terms of providing better river 
access.  Two of the parcels are currently being used for that purpose, but 
in an unmanaged and unofficial way.      


 
• The other smaller parcels which may have some local interest.  These 


parcels will require some level of marketing and using a local real estate 
professional would be an appropriate way of proceeding with this.     







 
Summary Report 


District Surplus Lands Workshop 
July 22, 2010 


 
Sweetwater Springs Water District held a public workshop at 6:30 pm on July 22 


at the Monte Rio Community Center, 20488 Highway 116, Monte Rio, 95446, to inform 
the public about the District’s strategy for its surplus lands and to get feedback and 
proposals in an informal setting that invites a community discussion.   
 


The Meeting started out with a short public comment period and then the District 
General Manager, Steve Mack, gave a short introductory presentation with the following 
information:  the District has approximately 900 acres of larger parcels that currently are 
undeveloped open space.  404 acres are in 4 parcels in the Mount Jackson area 
(northeast of Rio Nido), 94 acres are in 3 parcels west of Old Cazadero Road (north of 
Guernewood Park), and 384 acres are in 4 parcels south of the Monte Rio Terraces.   
These parcels are wooded, have some mostly unmaintained trails and roads, and are on 
steep slopes and at higher elevations.  Historically, the parcels were the source 
watershed for District owned springs, but the District does not supply water from these 
springs now and has no plans to do so in the foreseeable future.   


 


One of the District’s surplus lands goals is to keep those parcels in open space by 
transferring the parcels to a more appropriate open space management agency or 
organization.  This presentation was followed by a question and answer period on the 
presentation. 
 
Ken Wells, representing the Monte Rio Recreation and Park District (MRR&PD) gave a 
presentation on a proposal that the Sweetwater Springs Water District transfer the two 
large parcels south of Monte Rio identified as surplus lands (APN's 097-130-010 and 
011) to create a public park with trails. The MRR&PD proposal is being supported by the 
Sonoma County Trails Council, the Sonoma County Horse Council, and the Backcountry 
Horsemen - North Bay Unit, which together have the expertise and resources to help 
MRR&PD accomplish this goal. This idea would also require an easement for trails 
through the SSWD's Schoolhouse Gulch property (APN 096-010-001) in order to link the 
acquired park property with the old Monte Rio school site, which would be developed by 
MRR&PD into a trailhead for the new park.  The proposers of this idea believe it has the 
potential to create a new economic driver for the community based on recreational users 
visiting the community to use the trails in this new park. The potential also exists for 
Monte Rio and this park to be the hub of a regional trail system connecting this 'Monte 
Rio Mountain Park' with the neighboring Sonoma Beach State Park, and Sonoma 
County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District and Sonoma Land Trust 
protected lands. 
 
The meeting was then opened up for questions and comments from the audience.  
Issues and opinions from the comment periods included: 
 







Surplus Lands Workshop 
July 22, 2010 


2


• District lands are part of the original purchase of the District and should not be 
given away. Revenue from sale of property should be used be restricted to 
paying off the bond that was used to purchase the District.   


 
• The Board focus in this effort has moved from obtaining revenue to appropriate 


land management. 
 


• The watershed values of the District lands are important for the region and must 
not be compromised. 


 
• Lands were originally obtained as water sources for the District and should be 


retained for that possible use in the future.   
 


• The process is moving too quickly and much more information in needed on 
these parcels including environmental features and values, and fair market value.  
Slow down the process so that other proposals can surface.  Look for grant 
opportunities to develop more information. 


 
• Many comments of support for the concept of a regional park for multiple 


recreational purposes – hiking, biking, and equestrian.   
 


• Many local agencies and organization are experienced and willing for trail 
construction and maintenance.   


 
• Monte Rio Recreation and Park District has not demonstrated competency to 


manage these lands 
 


• Lands should be managed to reduce fire hazard and ensure a healthy forest and 
the environmental values that brings. 


 
• Lands should be opened up/managed for more availability for public uses.    


 
• Fire hazard is present; some level of management and/or insurance could be 


done cost effectively.   
 


• Make certain of guarantees that lands will be used for public purposes if 
transferred.  Many comments about transferring the lands and what rights would 
be transferred – conservation easements, water rights, timber harvesting rights, 
etc.   


 
• Economic opportunities if lands managed for equestrian, hiking, and cycling 


purposes. 
 


• Make certain new uses – trails for biking, in particular, do not damage watershed 
values.   


 
• Have more public meetings on this before any action is taken.  Have a public 


workshop in Guerneville.   
 
Questions and Answers: 







Surplus Lands Workshop 
July 22, 2010 


3


 
Q: How can we be certain that the District won’t need these lands for water supply 
purposes in the future? 
 
A: The District’s current approach to obtaining water – wells near the Russian River - 
develop more than enough water for current and anticipated demand.  Use of spring 
water or surface from local creeks would require meeting surface water treatment rules 
which, among other requirements, involve approved water treatment facilities prior to 
delivery to customers and would be cost prohibitive.   
 
Q: What if District sells/transfers land to agency or organization and that 
agency/organization then sells it for another purpose? 
 
A:  Transfer can be structured so that if the receiving agency does not follow through 
with conditions of sale it reverts to the District.  Another approach could be to limit sale to 
conservation easements or other elements of property rights that limit use to a regional 
park, for example, and the District would retain other property rights.   
 
Q: Are the parcels contiguous with any existing regional parks? 
 
A: No, but one edge of the parcels behind the Monte Rio Terraces are close to Sonoma 
State Park. 
 
Q: Don’t the ratepayers own the land? 
 
A: No, the land is owned by the Water District but the Directors of the Board do 
represent the voters in the Water District, many of whom are ratepayers and who do get 
to vote for directors. 
 
Board Member Comments: 
 


• Many thanks for the attendance and comments. 
 


• Mission of Sweetwater Springs Water District is delivering potable water to its 
customers; these lands do not fit with this mission.   


 
• The Water District is not a land management agency; perhaps there is a better 


way to manage the larger parcels and the District is exploring that. 
 


• Revenue from the sale of these lands is important. 
 


• Process will continue to include public input and any transfer of the larger parcels 
will not happen quickly. 


 
The meeting started at approximately 6:35 and adjourned at 8:07.     
 









		Item V-A District Lands StrategyAugust

		Meeting Date : August 5, 2010 



		Item V-A.1 Surplus Lands Workshop Report

		Item V-A.2 Let from Open Space District






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: August 5, 2010 
  
SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) 
REPORTS THRU JUNE 30, 2010 (100%) 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
OPERATIONS 
 
FY 2009-10 ended up with the District showing net income of approximately 
$36,000 more than anticipated.  As occurred last year, this extra income was 
mostly due to overbudgeting certain expenses – District revenues came in 
approximately $43,000 short of what was budgeted.  It should be noted that 
each of the line items overbudgeted in FY 2009-10 was decreased for the FY 
2010-11 budget.   
 
For a complete breakdown and explanation of line item variances, please refer to 
the attached FY 2009-10 Operating Budgeted Variances spreadsheet.  A 
summary of items with the biggest budget variances are listed below: 
 
 Income: 
 Water Sales:   $36,180 less than budgeted 
 
 Expenses: 
 Workers Comp Ins.: $12,210 less than budgeted 
 Gen’l Liability Ins.:  $10,545 less than budgeted 
 Auto/Equip’t Ins.:  $12,918 less than budgeted 
 Distribution Sys. Rep: $24,974 less than budgeted 
 Consultant Fees:  $10,914 less than budgeted  







Actual vs. Budgeted (Operations and Capital) reports thru June 30, 2009 (100%) 2  
August 5, 2010 


 Governmental Fees:: $11,800 more than budgeted 
 
CAPITAL  
 
The 4Q review shows the effects of completing CIP IV-A, Project 1 and Project 2 
and starting (but not finishing) CIP IV-B, Project 1 during this past fiscal year.   
As discussed in prior reports, from a fund balance perspective, we are paying for 
Project 1 (and all CIP construction) out of the Private Placement Loan (PPL) fund 
and putting the SCRA reimbursement in the Capital Improvement Revenue Fund 
(CIRF).  This has no impact on the overall amount of fund balances nor any other 
financial item, but will result in the PPL fund being depleted sooner than 
projected in the long-term planning budget estimates, and the CIRF will be larger 
by the identical amount.  The Capital budget ended the year in good shape – 
revenues are on track and expenses are where they were expected to be.  Costs 
for the remainder of Project 1 will be carried over into this current Fiscal Year. 
 
FUNDS AT THE COUNTY AND AT REDWOOD CREDIT UNION 
 
Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and end of 
year (EOY).  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the fiscal year.   
 
In Table 3 the Debt Repayment Reserve was miscalculated in the revised budget; 
otherwise the Policy Reserves are identical to budgeted amounts.  Total Reserves 
EOY are higher than budgeted.  That is because the approach of using up the 
Private Placement Loan (PPL) for paying construction bills is using up the PPL at a 
faster rate than shown in the budget with a corresponding increase in the CIRF.  
Also, CIP IV-B, Project 1 was budgeted in FY 10, but not completed, but the 
obligation to pay for the construction cost is still there even though the carryover 
funds show in the total reserves.   
 
The District Fund balances still show the transition to align these funds with the 
Reserve Policy elements.  Funds need to be moved in the Operations and 
Operations Reserve Funds to have them correspond to the Reserve Policy targets.  







Actual vs. Budgeted (Operations and Capital) reports thru June 30, 2009 (100%) 3  
August 5, 2010 


 
 


Table 3.  FUND AND LOAN 
BALANCES (EOY) 


FY 09-10 
Actual 
EOY 


09-10 
REVISED


Difference 
Actual-
FY10 


Revised Comments 
DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES  
District Policy Reserves 


  
Operating 
Balance 


 
200,000 


 
200,000                 -    


  


Budget Reserve 
(10% of 
Operating Exp) 


 
158,770 


 
158,770                 -    


  


Economic 
Reserve (15% of 
Operating Exp) 


 
238,155 


 
238,155                 -    


  


Debt Repayment 
Reserve (25% of 
Debt pmt) 


 
272,829 


 
238,155        34,674   Corrected amount 


  Capital Reserve 
 


250,000 
 


250,000                 -    


Total District 
Policy   


 
1,119,755 


 
1,085,08


1        34,674   


TOTAL 
Reserves EOY   


 
4,358,584 


 
3,652,27


4 
 


706,310


Difference because carryover 
construction expenses and 
PPL 


Reserves 
Above (below) 
Policy   


 
3,238,830 


 
2,567,19


3 
 


671,636 
Reflects error in Debt 
Repayment Reserve 


         
DISTRICT 
FUNDS        


  CIRF 
 


2,886,863 


 
1,839,24


1 
 


1,047,622   


  
OPERATING 
RESERVE 


 
324,970 


 
225,000 


 
99,970 


Still needs balancing to 
Reserve Policy, should be 
~$396,926 


  OPERATIONS 
 


343,880 
 


788,542 
 


(444,662)


Still needs balancing to 
Reserve Policy, should be 
~$200,000 


  CD 
 


602,173 
 


601,884 
 


289   


  


IN HOUSE 
CONSTRUCTIO
N 


 
109,848 


 
106,757 


 
3,091   


  BUILDING 
 


90,850 
 


90,850                 -    
DISTRICT LOANS 
       


  
Private 
Placement Loan 


 
678,346 


 
1,205,56


0 
 


(527,214)   







Actual vs. Budgeted (Operations and Capital) reports thru June 30, 2009 (100%) 4  
August 5, 2010 


Total Funds Available (sum of 
Total Reserves EOY and PPL) 


 
5,036,930 


 
4,857,83


4 
 


179,096 
 CIP IV-B, Project 1 costs still 
outstanding 


 
 







FY 2009-10 
Actual


2009-10 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.1. 2· Capital Debt Reduction Charge
215,928 252,426 -36,498 85.54%


Underbudgeted, but the District actually 
transferred the budgeted amount to CIRF. *


4031.1 · Daily Water Sales Deposits 1,796,411 1,796,092 319 100.02%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 2,012,339 2,048,518 -36,180 98.23% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,012,339 2,048,518 -36,180 98.23%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE
4445 · Grant Proceeds 0 0 0 0.0%  
1700 · Interest 40,332 50,000 -9,668 80.66% Reflects interest earnings thru 4Q *
3600 · Construction New Services 3,293 6,000 -2,707 54.89%
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 2,304 2,000 304 115.18%
4032 · Rent 77,869 74,600 3,269 104.38%  
4040 · Miscellaneous Income 4,114 2,200 1,914 187.01%  


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 127,912 134,800 -6,888 94.89%


Total Income 2,140,251 2,183,318 -43,068 98.03%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 690,858 687,229 3,629 100.53%
5912 · Overtime 24,900 33,000 -8,100 75.46%
5916 · On-Call Pay 26,955 26,436 519 101.96%
5918 · Extra help - Contract 33,899 32,000 1,899 105.93%  


Total Salary 776,611 778,665 -2,054 99.74%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monie 1,679 0 1,679 100.0%
5920 · Retirement 97,211 98,797 -1,586 98.4%
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 13,881 14,006 -125 99.11%
5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 111,192 116,715 -5,523 95.27%


5931 · Retiree Health 2,270 0 2,270 100.0%


This line item was broken out from Health 
Insurance at the request of our Auditor 
(Michael Celentano) to comply with GASB 
45


 
5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 21,859 34,069 -12,210 64.16%


Overbudgeted for the year.  The FY 2010-
11 budget for this line item was reduced to 
$27,700. *


Total Benefits 248,093 263,587 -15,494 94.12%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,024,704 1,042,252 -17,548 98.32%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications
6040-I · Internet service 1,390 1,800 -410 77.22%
6040-C · Cell Phones 2,819 3,100 -281 90.95%
6040-LD · Long Distance 507 700 -193 72.39%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 622 900 -278 69.1%
6040-S · SCADA software maint. 499 0 499 100.0%
6040-T · Telephones 12,526 12,000 526 104.39%


Total Communications 18,363 18,500 -138 99.26%


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2010 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 4







FY 2009-10 
Actual


2009-10 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2010 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability
39,435  50,000 -10,565 78.87%


Bill paid yearly and is paid for the year.  
Overbudgeted.  In FY 2010-11, budget 
reduced to $40,000. *


6102 · Auto/Equipment
4,682  17,600 -12,918 26.61%


Bill paid yearly and is paid for the year.  
Overbudgeted.  In FY 2010-11, budget 
reduced to $10,500. *


Total Insurances 44,117 67,600 -23,483 65.26%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 7,222 12,000 -4,778 60.18%   


6151 · Office Maintenance 5,064 10,700 -5,636 47.33%


Overbudgeted.  The budgeted amount 
included $6,000 for computer network 
maintenance, but our actual contract is only 
$1,860.  The FY 2010-11 budget is 
reduced to $4,800 for this line item.


*
Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 12,286 22,700 -10,414 54.12%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 6,178 6,700 -522 92.21%


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 45,026 70,000 -24,974 64.32%
Overbudgeted for the year.  The FY 2010-
11 budget for this line item was reduced to 
$64,000..


*


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 81,747 77,984 3,764 104.83%


In the 1Q, an unbudgeted rehab of MR Well
5 ($13,902) will leave this line item 
underbudgeted for the year.  Also this 
quarter, two large maintenance projects 
were done: (1) replace pump/motor for MR 
Well 4 ($7295) and (2) Video of El Bonita 
Well 5 ($9446).  In the 2Q, the El Bonita 
Well Rehab -- slated for FY 2010-11 -- 
became necessary this year at an 
unbudgeted cost of $12,076.  At the March 
Board meeting, the budget for this line item 
was increased from $45,000 to $77,983.64 
because of the need to replace the filter 
media in the Monte Rio green sand filter.


 


6143 · Generator Maintenance 2,892 3,000 -108 96.4%  


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 135,844 157,684 -21,840 86.15%


Miscellaneous Expenses
6280 · Memberships 4,729 5,100 -371 92.73%  
6303 · Claims 0 1,500 -1,500 0.0%  


6593 · Governmental Fees 23,800 12,000 11,800 198.33%


1Q expense includes water system fees,
paid twice yearly.  Always hard to predict, 
system fees were higher than anticipated 
this year, leaving this line item 
underbudgeted.  In FY 2010-11, the budget 
for this line item is $21,700.


*
Total Miscellaneous Expenses 28,529 18,600 9,929 153.38%


Office Expense
6410 · Postage 12,268 17,000 -4,732 72.17%


 Page 2 of 4







FY 2009-10 
Actual


2009-10 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2010 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6430 · Printing Expense 7,842 5,250 2,592 149.38%


Bills and envelopes are purchased in yearly 
quantities.  Unbudgeted costs of meter 
reading pages ($497), Auto-pay bills (app. 
$250), tag books (app. $900), and other 
smaller print jobs will leave this line item 
underbudgeted for the year.


 


6461 · Office Supplies 3,958 7,000 -3,042 56.54% Overbudgeted.  In FY 2010-11, the budget 
for this line item is reduced to $6,500 *


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 808 1,000 -192 80.79%
6890 · Computers/Software 1,200 1,950 -750 61.54%
6579 · Furniture 664 1,000 -336 66.44%


Total Office Expense 26,741 33,200 -6,459 80.54%


Operating Supplies
6300 · Chemicals 16,723 14,800 1,923 112.99%  
6880 · Tools and Equipment 3,724 5,500 -1,776 67.72%
6881 · Safety Equipment 1,119 2,000 -881 55.93%


Total Operating Supplies 21,566 22,300 -734 96.71%


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 2,568 2,600 -32 98.76%  
6521 · County charges 1,712 1,500 212 114.11%  
6587 · County LAFCO charges 4,761 4,700 61 101.3% Bill is pd yearly and is paid for the year
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 8,767 8,500 267 103.14%


6570 · Consultant Fees 14,086 25,000 -10,914 56.35% Overbudgeted.  In FY 2010-11, the budget 
for this line item is reduced to $20,000. *


6590 · Engineering 425 2,000 -1,575 21.26%  


6610 · Legal 17,874 20,000 -2,126 89.37%
In the 1Q and 2Q, the Berry/Korbel litigation 
and the cell tower negotiations are leaving 
legal expenses slightly overbudget.


 
6630 · Audit/Accounting 18,888 18,000 888 104.93%  


Total Professional Services 69,081 82,300 -13,219 83.94%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 1,755 2,000 -245 87.73%
6840 · Building & Warehouse 27,000 27,000 0 100.0%   


Total Rents & Leases 28,755 29,000 -245 99.15%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 1,862 4,500 -2,638 41.37%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 21,692 16,800 4,892 129.12%


7300 · Travel Reimbursements 5,453 6,360 -907 85.73%
  


Total Transportation & Travel 29,006 27,660 1,346 104.87%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 1,119 1,330 -211 84.16%


6021.3 · T-shirts 1,215 1,200 15 101.26% T-shirts are purchased once yearly
6021.4 · Jackets 272 360 -88 75.43%


Total Uniforms 2,606 2,890 -284 90.17%


Utilities


 Page 3 of 4







FY 2009-10 
Actual


2009-10 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2010 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


7320 · Electric and Propane 94,484 96,000 -1,516 98.42%  
Total Utilities 94,484 96,000 -1,516 98.42%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 511,376 578,434 -67,058 88.41%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,536,080 1,620,686 -84,605 94.78%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8517 · Field/office equipment 10,507 5,000 5,507 210.14%


In the 3Q, the District purchased a 
generator for the Schoeneman tank 
($3,413) and a compressor ($1,464).  We 
have no detailed list of what was budgeted 
for this line item so it is unclear what was 
budgeted and unbudgeted, but no further 
purchases are anticipated for this line item.


 


8573 · Vehicles 0 0 0 0.0%  


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 10,507 5,000 5,507 210.14%


Total Expense 1,546,587 1,625,686 -79,099 95.13%


Net Ordinary Income 593,663 557,632 36,031 106.46%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 252,426 252,426 0 100.0%
8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 280,000 280,000 0 100.0%
8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000 0 100.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 572,426 572,426 0 100.0%


 Page 4 of 4







 Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Capital Program Budget Variances as of March 31, 2010 (75%)


FY 09-10
ACTUAL


FY 09-10
BUDGET


FY 09-10
REVISED 
BUDGET


$ Over 
Revised 


Budget for 
Year


% of 
Budget Comments


REVENUE


Annual Assessment - New Services 14,658 27,000 27,000 -12,342 54.3%
Annual Assessment (County) 696,522 710,000 710,000 -13,478 98.1%
Prior Year Assessment 34,148 40,000 40,000 -5,852 85.4%
Capital Debt Reduction Charge 252,426 252,426 252,426 0 100.0% Didn't actually get this amount - it's lower
Interest 34,027 95,000 95,000 -60,973 35.8% off considerably
Cal Trans Reimb. For Culvert Project 52,547 0 0 52,547 NA Received in 1st Q


CDC Grants, CIP IV-A, FY09 carryover 437,720 0 437,720 0 100.0%
Reimbursements for FY09 CIP IV-A, 
carried over into FY10


CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 1 233,969 899,250 -665,281 26.0% Project will carryover into FY11


CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 2 16,657 30,000 -13,343 55.5%
Reimbursements for CIP IV-B, Project 2 
design


659,239 222,945 436,294 295.7% PPL used for paying construction costs


298,879    
1,052,000 438,750


-139,871 68.1%
CDC Grant, Bonita Terrace, FY09 
Carryover


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 280,000 280,000 280,000 0 100.0% End of year transfer, CDRC subtracted 


25,000 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


TOTAL REVENUE 3,035,791 2,481,426 3,458,091 -422,300 87.8%


EXPENSES   
Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 687,375 687,000 687,000 375 100.1%
State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300 170,300 -128 99.9%
Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014 234,014 -1 100.0% 2 payments made
CIP III 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 100.0% Settlement payment


CIP IV-A 659,239 0 660,665
-1,426 99.8%


Project 2 started in May, carried over 
into FY10, Completed in November 09


CIP IV-B, Project 1 405,422 1,052,000 1,328,000      -922,578 30.5%
Construction started in May, anticipate 
October 10 completion


CIP IV-B, Project 2 22,210 40,000 -17,790 55.5% Design costs, started in July 10
In-House Construction Projects 20,311 40,000 40,000 -19,689 50.8%


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,248,742 2,233,314 3,209,979 -961,237 70.1%


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 787,049  248,112 248,112 538,937 317.2%


Budget due to Project 1 carryover into 
FY 11


Private Placement Funding (CIP IV-B)


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations


Private Placement Funding (FY09 
Carryover)







 


(from "Trial Balance by Project" Report (FAMIS 017))


$770,352.33 $75,850.00 $225,000.00 $685,375.36 $121,756.89 ($0.95) $1,606,129.13 $ 24,842.89 $24,750.00 $148,547.00 $146,619.86 $1,867,255.40 $5,696,477.91
 (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)


NAME


CD at 
Redwood 


Cred U


Operations Bldg Fund Reserves Federal Loan In-house 
Construction


Federal 
Construction


Capital 
Improvement 


Revenue


State Loan 
#58330


State Loan 
#58830 
Reserve


State Loan 
58340


State Loan 
58340 Reserve


Private 
Placement 
Funding


INDEX 776013 776021 776039 776203 776211 776302 776401 776500 776518 776609 776617 776708


PROJECT 001 002 003 200 210 300 400 500 510 600 610 700


FP1 573,223.48 $800,352.33 $75,850.00 $225,000.00 $685,375.36 $105,158.89 ($0.95) $1,439,122.53 $24,842.89 $24,750.00 $148,547.00 $146,619.86 $1,636,464.17 $5,312,082.08


FP2 573,223.48 $800,352.33 $75,850.00 $225,000.00 $236,687.68 $104,264.93 ($0.95) $1,651,149.23 $24,842.89 $24,750.00 $148,547.00 $146,619.86 $1,424,993.25 $4,863,056.22


FP3 573,223.48 $880,352.33 $75,850.00 $225,000.00 $236,687.68 $102,514.93 ($0.95) $1,764,646.37 $13,065.92 $24,750.00 $75,237.99 $146,619.86 $1,295,539.22 $4,840,263.35


FP4 580,486.72 $919,930.52 $75,850.00 $225,000.00 $236,687.68 $98,681.55 ($0.95) $1,791,402.58 $13,065.92 $24,750.00 $75,237.99 $146,619.86 $1,267,656.97 $4,874,882.12


FP5 580,486.72 $1,044,930.52 $75,850.00 $225,000.00 $236,687.68 $96,031.71 ($0.95) $1,897,596.13 $13,065.92 $24,750.00 $75,237.99 $146,619.86 $1,048,932.12 $4,884,700.98


FP6 587,638.56 $1,044,930.52 $75,850.00 $225,000.00 $236,687.68 $94,181.71 ($0.95) $2,252,935.18 $13,065.92 $24,750.00 $75,237.99 $146,619.86 $1,006,417.17 $5,195,675.08


FP7 587,638.56 $1,114,771.87 $75,850.00 $225,000.00 $236,687.68 $93,981.71 ($0.95) $2,255,499.96 $13,065.92 $24,750.00 $75,237.99 $146,619.86 $900,996.53 $5,162,460.57


FP8 587,638.56 $869,771.87 $90,850.00 $225,000.00 ($2,000.00) $113,217.24 $0.00 $2,543,253.07 $13,065.92 $24,750.00 $75,237.99 $146,619.86 $873,423.03 $4,973,188.98


FP9 594,821.17 $869,771.87 $90,850.00 $225,000.00 $688,000.00 $114,176.24 $0.00 $1,682,953.07 $24,968.95 $24,750.00 $148,548.98 $146,619.86 $854,066.88 $4,869,705.85


FP10 594,821.17 $545,486.78 $90,850.00 $396,970.00 $688,000.00 $113,268.62 $0.00 $2,256,978.19 $24,968.95 $24,750.00 $148,548.98 $146,619.86 $829,658.42 $5,266,099.80


FP11 594,821.17 $268,060.78 $90,850.00 $324,970.00 $688,000.00 $110,127.61 $0.00 $2,636,404.19 $24,968.95 $24,750.00 $148,548.98 $146,619.86 $824,186.42 $5,287,486.79


FP12 602,172.72 $341,686.78 $90,850.00 $324,970.00 $688,000.00 $109,847.61 $0.00 $2,777,638.45 $24,968.95 $24,750.00 $148,548.98 $146,619.86 $678,345.94 $5,356,226.57


FP 13 
(FINAL)


602,172.72 $343,880.43 $90,850.00 $324,970.00 $688,000.00 $109,847.61 $0.00 $2,886,863.46 $ 24,968.95 $24,750.00 $148,548.98 $146,619.86 $678,345.94 $5,467,645.23


            
Balance does not 


reflect June 
construction checks


$0.00


Beginning balances per FAMIS:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from GL101 until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as "Vendors Payable")


 





		Item V-B - Staff report re Actual v Budgeted - 4Q 2010-11

		Item V-B.1 Budget variances as of 06-30-2010 (100%)

		Sheet1 (2)



		Item V-B.2  - Budget Variances - Cap Imp - FY 10-11 4Q

		Revised



		Item V-B.3 County Acctg Indices FY 09-10

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00








   
    


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting 
Date: August 5, 2010 Subject: Public Hearing re Annual Flat Charge 
   


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


• Open Public Hearing 
• Take public comment 
• Close Public Hearing 
• Adopt Resolution 10-17, Overruling Protests and Confirming Report on the annual flat charge 


at the same level as last year 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
The FY 2009-10 assessment generated approximately $730,670 in annual revenues.  This does not 
include $14,658 received this year for back flat charges on new services constructed, nor does it 
include interest earned on assessment revenue in FY 2009-10. 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


On an annual basis since July 1992, the District has imposed a flat charge for each separate water 
connection to a property.  Currently set at $198/water connection, the funds collected are largely used 
to pay for debt service on the original purchase of the water system and facility upgrades.   
 
This annual charge is added to the tax bill and collected by the County, along with all other county 
property taxes and assessments.   


 
 







Resolution No. 10-17 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT OVERRULING PROTESTS AND CONFIRMING 


REPORT ON ANNUAL FLAT CHARGE FOR SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 
DISTRICT. 


 
 WHEREAS, this Board did on July 14, 1992, adopt Ordinance No. 8 which 
established an annual flat charge, and authorized collection of such charge on the tax 
roll of the County of Sonoma, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared a written report containing a description of 
each parcel of real property receiving services and facilities from the District and the 
amount of the flat charge for each parcel for the 2010-11 fiscal year, and 
 
 WHEREAS,  said written report has been on file with the Clerk of said District, 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS,  notice appointing the time and place of hearing protests on said 
report was duly given in the manner provided by law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all written protests and other written communications were publicly 
read at said meeting and all persons desiring to be heard were fully heard, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 
 
 1. That objections to and protests against said report were not made by the 
owners of a majority of the separate parcels of property described in the report against 
which charges for services and facilities provided by the District were fixed. 
 
 2. That all objections to and protests against said report have been heard by 
this Board and that said objections and protests be, and each of them is hereby 
overruled. 
 
 3. That said report be, and it is hereby adopted in full with the revisions to 
each charge as specified therein, and that said charges shall be collected on the tax roll 
of the County of Sonoma, in the manner provided by law. 
 
 4. That the Clerk of this District be, and he is hereby directed to file with the 
County Auditor of Sonoma County, on or before the 10th day of August, 2010 a copy of 
said report, upon which shall be endorsed over her signature a statement that the report 
has been finally adopted by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT. 
 
 5. That the County Auditor of Sonoma County, shall upon receipt of said 
report, enter the amount of the charges against the respective lots or parcels as they 
appear on the assessment roll. 
 


***************************** 







I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on August 
5, 2010, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Wanda Smith        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 





		Item V-C Public Hearing re Annual Flat Charge

		Meeting



		Item V-C.1 RES 10-17 Annual Flat Charges






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : August 5, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE CLAIM NO. 2010-01, TIM ROSSETTI, 14703 
EAGLE NEST LANE, GUERNEVILLE    
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Reject the claim by Tim Rossetti for forgiveness cost 
of water registered by his meter for the April 15, 2010 water bill, disputed amount is 
$92.00.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $92.00. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Mr Rossetti has disputed his April 15, 2010 water bill in the amount of $92.00 as 
explained in the attached letter from him.  He has stated that if we don’t give him relief 
from this amount he will go to Small Claims Court to achieve relief.   
 
Mr. Rossetti is a part-time resident and full-time customer at 14703 Eagles Nest Lane, 
Rio Nido.  His typical water use is in the 0-2 units per billing period range.  Prior to this 
bill, and looking back into the billing record to 2004, his highest water use in any one 
billing period was 5 units.  For the April 15, 2010 bill, the water use recorded was 36 
units and he was billed accordingly.  He protested that bill in a letter received in May 
28, 2010, writing that he was not at the house during that period and we responded on 
June 1, 2010, writing that we agreed that the use was unusual, but the meter read was 
correct (it was checked) and therefore, the bill was correct.  Mr. Rossetti responded 
with his claim and statement of intention to go to Small Claims Court if the $92.00 was 
not forgiven and claiming the meter must be reading incorrectly in a letter received  
June 24, 2010.  Staff called Mr. Rossetti, did not get him directly but did leave a 
message offering to have the meter tested – the cost borne by him if it tested 
accurately and by the District if not (this is a standard practice for all customers 
questioning their meter’s accuracy).  We have not received a response to that 
voicemail.  The letters from Mr. Rossetti and the District response are attached.   
 
Consideration of this claim by the Board is the next step in this process.  Mr. Rossetti 
did not file a claim using the District’s form, but his June 24, 2010 letter represents a 
claim and can be considered as such.  The General Manager has authority to settle 
claims for less than $1,000, but not to reject claims.  As this claim has not been settled, 
Board action is required.   
 







DISCUSSION/ACTION RE: ROSSETTI CLAIM 2   
August 5, 2010 
                                                                 


 


Mr. Rossetti is basing his claim on the meter being inaccurate.  No device is perfect, but 
meters, if inaccurate, in almost all cases read low, not high.  In my 20 years in the 
utility business I have not been involved in any situation where a tested meter read 
high and I have been told by others that when they do test high it is a relatively small 
amount - 10-20 percent.  I am not aware of any situations where a meter would be off 
by a large amount (36 units instead of 1-2 units for a two month period in this case) for 
one billing period and then go back to normal reads.  The District’s meter vendor agrees 
with my experience.  Mechanically, a meter cannot increase its reading unless there is 
something going through the meter moving the register and that can’t happen unless 
something is open on the downstream side of the meter.    
 
The amount read for the April bill is unexplained but there are possible explanations, 
the two most likely are that a hose bib or faucet was left open, or a toilet was leaking 
through a flapper valve not being sealed correctly.  It does not appear to be a leak in 
the underground plumbing because subsequent meter reads do not show the high use 
continuing.  Underground leaks do not repair themselves and Mr. Rossetti has provided 
no information that he made such a repair.     
 
The District charges for water going through the meter.  In cases of high use during 
leaks, the District policy is to forgive 50% of the cost of water going through the meter 
if the leak is repaired and the cost of water is more than $100 above average water 
use.  Mr. Rossetti’s bill does not meet the cost standard.     
 
It is staff’s determination that the meter reading for the April billing was correct, the 
April bill was correct and appropriate, and staff recommends that the Board reject Mr. 
Rossetti’s claim.  A letter rejecting Mr. Rossetti’s claim is attached.   







































 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
August 6, 2010 
 
Timothy Rossetti 
532 Cherry Ave. 
San Bruno, CA  94066 
 


Re: Rejection of Claim 
 Claim No. 2010-01 
 


 
Dear Mr. Rossetti: 
 
Notice is hereby given that the claim you filed with the District on June 24, 
2010, was presented to the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District on August 5, 2010, and was rejected in whole by action of the 
Board of Directors of the District on that date. 
 


“WARNING” 
 
“Subject to certain exceptions, you have only six (6) months from the date 
this notice was personally delivered or deposited in the mail to file a court 
action on this claim.  See Government Code Section 945.6. 
 
You may seek the advice of an attorney of your choice in connection with this 
matter.  If you desire to consult an attorney, you should do so immediately”. 
 
 
 
      
Steve Mack 
General Manager 
 





		Item V-D Rossetti Claim

		Meeting Date : August 5, 2010 



		Item V-D.1 Mr. Rossetti's original letter received 05-28-2010

		CCF00822010_00002

		CCF00822010_00003

		CCF00822010_00004

		CCF00822010_00005



		Item V-D.2 District's response to 5-28 letter, dated June 1

		Item V-D.3 Claim letter

		CCF00822010_00000

		CCF00822010_00001

		CCF00822010_00002



		Item V-D.4 - Claim rejection letter

		“WARNING”








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : August 5, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE 2010 - 2011 DISTRICT GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a staff presentation regarding the 2010 District 
Goals and Objectives. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
One year ago the Board reviewed the District Goals and Objectives which was first 
drafted in 2007 (but last year was its first review, I believe).  The Board suggested 
several changes which were incorporated in a draft circulated for the August 2009 
meeting. At that meeting the Board agreed that the Goals and Objectives should be 
reviewed on an annual basis at the July meeting.   
 
Exhibit 1 is the version circulated for the August meeting with the Status column (the 
column furthest on the right) updated to include activities/accomplishments of the past 
year.  A summary of the past year accomplishments include: 
 


• GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT – highlights of the past year include approval of District Reserve 
Policy, no rate changes, and utilization of multiyear financial planning spreadsheet to show 
long-term effects of Board decisions.   


 
• GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 


FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY – excellent progress has been made with the 
District’s CIP; potable water standards met for the year. 


 
• GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 


REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS – the District’s Emergency Preparedness 
Response and Recovery Plan was updated in fall 2009.  District staff participated in 
annual river flood meeting. 


 
• GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE  - Two staff passed 


certification tests in the past year; Worker’s Comp insurance premiums have 
been reduced.   


 
• GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 


EDUCATION – the District website is continually updated and evaluated for improvements; 
staff are participating in regional forums.   







Discussion Re District Goals and Objectives             2  
August 5, 2010                                                                 


 


 
• GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION – the 


General Manager’s Report has been expanded; annual review of the Goals and 
Objectives is happening.   


 
Please review the attached Goals and Objectives, including the status column, for currency and 
completeness.  Annual review and updating of the Goals and Objectives is a good check on the 
District’s progress and with Board concurrence, we will continue the practice.     
 







Exhibit 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Goals and Objectives, July 2010 
 
GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT 


Priority Task Rationale Action Process Measures Status 


1 


Financial plan 
to meet budget 
needs, shortfalls 
and surpluses (3-5 
yr. Plan) 
 


Meet projected future 
financial obligations 


• Expand budget process  
 to include 3-5 year              
projections 


• Retire high-cost debt 
• Investigate plant/office 


purchases 


Budget committee review of 
Financial Plan 


Reserve Policy met Reserve Policy met 
by 2011 Budget.  
Multi year plan 
developed and 
used in 
presentations. 


 
2 


 
Maintain 
Reasonable Rates 


• Rates tied to costs 
• Fairness to all 


customers 
• Ethics 
• Customer relations 
• Accurate 
 


 
Review rates on annual basis 
as part of budget process 


• Develop rates to fund 
budget 


• Present to public 
• Rate hearing 
• Adopt new rates 


Rates completed on 
schedule 


No water rate 
changes this year.  
Process was on 
schedule. 


 
3 


Investigate 
sources of 
funding 
consistent with 
District goals 
 
 


• Avoid/minimize 
raising rates 


• Complete project 
list faster 


• Take on additional 
projects 


• Regularly evaluate land use, 
grants, loans, bonds, 
foundations 


• More frequently evaluate 
investments 


• Develop Short- and long-term 
Business Plan 


• Evaluate selling lots/parcels 
within District that are not 
being used or planned for 
use. 


• Consider requiring every living 
quarter and business to have 
a separate meter where 
appropriate 


• Research other 
sources of funding 


• Consider hiring a  
grant writer 


• Perform real property 
inventory 


• Consider 
Conservation 
easements 


 


Obtain Funding RDA/RRROC 
funding obtained 
for CIP IV-B.  
Land 
Management 
Program 
underway. 


 
4 


Improve 
Presentation of 
Costs/overruns and 
revenues 
 
 


• Control costs 
• Achieve balanced 


Budget 


• Increase contingency 
planning 


• Effective management 
• Better contract writing 
• Increase communication to 


Board 


Review past change 
orders/issues 


Quarterly review of 
Budget 
End of Year review 


Budget reviewed 
quarterly.  Annual 
Review in August.   


5 Establish and 
Adhere to District 
Reserve Policy 


• Prudent • Adopt District Reserve 
Policy 


• Review Budget annually to 
insure conformance to 
policy. 


Adopt Ordinance; add to 
District  Policies and 
Procedures 


Adoption of policy 
Track reserve levels 
 


Policy adopted.  
Reserve levels 
tracked in budget. 


6 Develop Property 
Management 
Program 


• Effective Use of 
District Resources 


• Possible Source of 
Revenue 


• District Liability 


• Develop Property 
Management Program 


Inventory Property 
Assess Condition/Function 


Active Program Land Management 
Program started. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Goals and Objectives, 2010 
July 1, 2010         
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH FACILITIES THAT ARE 
PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY  


 


Priority Task Rationale Action Process 
 


Measures 
 


 
Status 


 
 


1 
Ensure safe 
collection, 
treatment, storage, 
and distribution of 
clean water 


• Legal requirement 
• Community 
     commitment 


• Meet DPH standards  
• Maintain the existing 


facilities with new pipes 
and materials as 
needed 


• Employee training, 
including environmental 
impacts 


 


• Compliance 
• Evaluate opportunities 


to exceed 
• Monthly report 


• DPH reports of 
noncompliance;  
number of 
violations 


 


Compliance with 
DPH regulations.  
Annual report 
submitted 
according to 
schedule. 


 
2 


Complete Capital 
Improvement 
Projects on 
Schedule and 
within Budget 


Community 
Commitment 
Improve Water Quality 
Improve Fire Protection 
Reduce System Losses 


• Review Capital 
Improvement Program 
on two year basis 


• Complete Annual 
Program 


Staff Review of CIP 
Board Review of CIP 
Complete Annual 
Projects 


• Completion of 
Annual Project 
within Budget 


CIP IV-A, 
Projects 1 and 2 
completed within 
budget.  CIP-IV-B 
started. 


 
3 


Protect Water 
Rights 


Continue to protect our  
water rights 


Maintain right/license 
appropriate for the District 


Status report  • Water rights 
documentation 
from the State 


License obtained 
from State. 


 
4 


Create appropriate 
standards & 
maintain/upgrade 
as needed. 
 


Eliminate redundancy 
and inconsistency 


Progressively create/adopt 
standards 


As projects are 
implemented 


Efficiency of 
operations 


Working with 
B&R to update 
system map 


 2 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Goals and Objectives, 2010 
July 1, 2010         
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL REASONABLE, 
FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 


 


 
Priority Task Rationale Action Process 


 
Measures 


 


 
Status 


 
 


1 
 


Disaster 
preparedness and 
emergency 
planning 


To be prepared for 
emergencies. Respond 
to emergency situations 


• Staff review current 
plans on annual basis. 


 
•  Update current plans as 


appropriate  
 
• Coordinate plans with 


other emergency 
responders 


 
• Update website for 


emergency 
preparedness 


 
 


• Website 
• Local radio station 
• Office of Emergency 


Services 
• Annual disaster 


review 


Ensure plans meet 
goals. 
Ability to respond 


Emergency 
Action Plan was 
reviewed and 
updated in 
October 2009.  
Participated in 
annual River 
flood meeting.   


 3 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Goals and Objectives, 2010 
July 1, 2010         
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 


 
Priority Task Rationale Action Process 


 
Measures 


 


 
Status 


 
 
1 


Provide safe work 
environment 


• Legal requirement 
• Save money on 


workers comp 
claims 


• Ethics 


• Ensure training 
opportunities are 
available for all 
employees Training 


• Providing proper 
equipment 


• Review appropriate 
policies 


 


• Hold regular safety 
meetings 


• Investigate 
inexpensive services 
or bartering services 


• Keep current 
w/industry standards 


• # claims 
• # complaints 


Regular safety 
meetings held.  
Workers Comp 
premiums have 
been reduced. 


2 Build employee 
skills and 
competencies. 


• Optimize 
efficiency 


•  


• Provide training and 
development 
opportunities for all 
employees 


• Create opportunities for 
employee team building 


• Make educational 
opportunities 
available 


• Staff Certification 
levels 


Two staff passed 
certification tests 
in past year. 


 
3 


Develop& 
implement 
programs that will 
enhance staff  
safety, and 
efficiency 


• Stay in business 
• Optimize efficiency 
• Good Morale 


 
• Communicate goals to 


staff 
• Suggestion program 
• Provide a means for 


employee input 
• Ensure adequate 


staffing levels 
•  


Implementation/Staffing  
and Monitoring 


• Low Turnover 
• Customer 


complaints 
• # of training 


sessions 
• Projects 


completed 


Increasing in-
house projects 


 
4 


Regularly & 
effectively 
communicate 
policies and 
procedures to staff 


• Requirement 
• Good business 


practice 
• Risk Management 


Review appropriate      
policies 
• Regularly evaluate 


wages and benefits to 
ensure District is 
competitive with other 
agencies. 


 Staff meetings at 
which policies and 
procedures discussed 


Regular staff 
meetings held 
where policies 
are discussed. 


 4 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Goals and Objectives, 2010 
July 1, 2010         
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND EDUCATION 
 
Priority Task Rationale Action Process Measures Status 


 
1 


 
Be 
aware/proactive 
on external 
events 


• Impact on 
business 


• Avoid crisis 
management 
(be proactive vs. 
reactive) 


• Stay informed 
• Facilitate long-


term planning 


• Ensure information to public 
and media is accurate and 
correct 


• Stay up on local events thru 
media and professional 
organizations 


• Two-way communication 
(letters/GM report) 


• Expand GM report 
• Expand knowledge 


base 


Number and quality of 
communications 
regarding news affecting 
the District 


GM report has 
been expanded.  
Monthly report 
press release will 
be starting with 
this meeting.  
Participation in 
regional meetings 
and forums. 


 
2 


 
Ensure customer 
satisfaction 


• Good business 
practice 


 


• Enhance methods used to 
inform public of upcoming 
changes and special 
meetings (like RRROC) 


• Educate/inform/communicate 
• Respond to customer  


concerns adequately 
• Investigate opportunities for 


customers to provide 
comments. 


• Evaluate e-payment system 
• Improve communication  


Systems (phone system) 
 


• Hold 2-way 
Communications 
between customers 
and District 


 
• Learn what others 


Districts  are doing 


• Positive Customer 
Feedback 


• Track feedback 
• Periodically track 


phone calls 
• Evaluate the 


questions from 
customers 


Website 
improvements.  
Autopay in July 
2009.  Office 
signage redone.    
Staff continues to  
receive many 
compliments. 


 
3 


 
Investigate 
community 
networking/leade
rship 


More effective if we 
work together 


• Conduct public  
outreach meetings. 


• Attend community meetings. 
• Cooperate w/local groups 
• Be proactive in identifying 


issues with the potential to 
affect the District 


• Maintain Website 


 Priority list of contacts 
 
Integration of 
information to District 
issues 


• Number  of new 
contacts 


 
• Event attendance and 


feedback 
 
 


Participating in 
regional 
workshops and 
forums – 
Wastewater Task 
Group, RRROC.  
Website updated 
regularly. 
 


 


 5 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Goals and Objectives, 2010 
July 1, 2010         


 6 


 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 
 


 
Priority Task Rationale Action Process 


 
Measures 


 


 
Status 


 
 


1 
Be aware/proactive 
regarding external 
events 


• Impact on business 
• Avoid crisis 


management (be 
proactive vs. 
reactive) 


• Stay informed 
• Facilitate long-term 


planning 
• Cost effective 
• Efficient 
• Saves time 
 


• Stay up on local events 
thru media and 
professional 
organizations 


• Two-way 
communication 
(letters/GM report) 


• Business Plan 


• Expand GM reporting 
• Board Education 
• Obtain GM buy-in 


• Board learnings 
• Board 


effectiveness 


GM report 
expanded. 


 
2 


Evaluate Board 
effectiveness 


• Ensure Board is doing 
a good job 


• Meet community’s 
needs/expectations 


• Leverage District 
performance 


• Ensure ethics 
 


• Create Board orientation 
package 


• Review appropriateness 
of meeting dates with 
financial needs 


• Board familiarity with 
issues/property 


• Obtain feedback 
• Self and staff 


assessment 
•  


• Implementation and 
Review 


 
• Annual review of 


goals and progress 
 


• # tasks completed/ 
goals achieved 


• Ballot results 
• Finish goal setting 
 


P&P Manual 
given to new 
Boardmembers 
and updated.   
Second annual 
review of Goals. 


3 Maintain Policies 
and Procedures 
Manual 


• Compendium of 
District Policies 


• Information for Board 
Members and Public 
on Board Policies 


• Review P&P by outside 
consultant 


• Add Needed  Policies 
• Annual Review by 


Board 


• Hire Contractor 
• Add Policies as 


needed 


• Completion of 
Contracted Work 


• Number of Added 
Policies 


• Completion of 
Annual Review  


Working on rfp 
for assistance 
with this. 


 





		Item V-E - 2010 District Goals

		Meeting Date : August 5, 2010 



		Item V-E.1 - 2010 District GOALSJuly2010






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: August 5, 2010  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.  


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in June were 17,808 units (40.9 


AF) and production was 78.7 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and 
production are both substantially less (48.3 and 92.4 AF, respectively).  The 
difference between production and sales remains at approximately 28%.  
The attached Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving averages since 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  The District spends much staff time addressing leaks and we have 


an extensive capital program to replace water mains to reduce leaks in the 
system.  In June we had 41 total leaks and spent 143 man-hours on them.   
That’s  more total leaks but a number in man-hours than last month (May) 
and more leaks and hours than June one year ago (29 leaks, 78 man-
hours).  Part of the explanation is the return to dry weather which showed 
many leaks that had been covered up by the rainfall runoff and another 
reason is the construction that has been occurring.  Figure 2 shows leak 
history and man-hours spent dealing with leaks since 2001.     


 
4. River Flow.  Figure 3 is the 2010 flow at Hacienda gage chart starting in 


May.   This is quite a difference from last year with runoff from the 
watershed keeping the flow close to historical averages, despite the 
Temporary Urgency Change Petition approval that allows the Sonoma 
County Water Agency to drop flows to the 70-80 cfs range.  Flow has been 
relatively flat in July – near the 200 cfs range for the month – and the 
reported real time values have been periodically changed on the USGS site, 
possibly because changes in the downstream dams have affected the rating 
curve for the Hacienda gage.  Earlier reports had the reported flows 20-30 
cfs higher in July.  This is still much higher than we expected for mid 
summer in May.   







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
June 3, 2010 


 
5. Decision 1610 Change Petition Protest.  The District received a letter 


from the water agency regarding this protest (attached as Correspondence).  
 
6. CIP IV-B, Project 1.  Both Riverlands Road and Bonita Terrace  are being 


served from the new mains.  The Handy Andy feed line work near Highway 
116 is completed and the work at Old Monte Rio Road underway.  Regarding 
the Schoolhouse Tanks, the upper tank has been poured (concrete) and the 
current focus is on completing retaining wall for the lower tank.  The site 
preparation for this tank ran into more and harder rock than anticipated and 
a change order for unexpected conditions will likely be necessary here.     


 
7. CIP IV-B, Project 2.  KAT is doing the mainlining work on River Boulevard 


the week of this report.  Brelje and Race is working on the design of the Rio 
Vista Terrace Project.    


 
8. Toilet Rebate Program.  11 toilet rebates were issued in July at a total 


cost of $1,650.  A total of 44 rebates have been approved, with $3,728 
remaining from the funds allocated.     


 
9. In-House Construction Projects.  In July, staff did 8 in-house 


construction projects that required 214.25 estimated man-hours.  305 feet 
of water line was installed (Huckleberry Way/Summit and 
Morningside/Woodland) and five services were replaced or upgraded.     


 
10.   Gantt Chart.   August in the Gantt Chart shows construction for the CIP 


projects which are ongoing and described above.  Left over items from prior 
months include the Goals and Objectives Review which was postponed from 
last month’s meeting and is on the agenda for this meeting, and labor 
negotiations which are essentially completed.  We approval of a new MOU 
for the September meeting.          


 


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
June 3, 2010 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Average
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


May-
01


Nov-
01


May-
02


Nov-
02


May-
03


Nov-
03


May-
04


Nov-
04


May-
05


Nov-
05


May-
06


Nov-
06


May-
07


Nov-
07


May-
08


Nov-
08


May-
09


Nov-
09


May-
10


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


40.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Total Pipeline Breaks 
and Hours Spent in Repair, Moving Annual Average


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


450


500


Dec
-00


Apr-
01


Aug
-01


Dec
-01


Apr-
02


Aug
-02


Dec
-02


Apr-
03


Aug
-03


Dec
-03


Apr-
04


Aug
-04


Dec
-04


Apr-
05


Aug
-05


Dec
-05


Apr-
06


Aug
-06


Dec
-06


Apr-
07


Aug
-07


Dec
-07


Apr-
08


Aug
-08


Dec
-08


Apr-
09


Aug
-09


Dec
-09


Apr-
10


B
re


ak
s


-


350


700


1,050


1,400


1,750


2,100


2,450


2,800


3,150


3,500


H
ou


rs


Total Breaks
Total Hours
Linear (Total Hours)
Linear (Total Breaks)


 







General Manager’s Report  4 of 4 
June 3, 2010 


 


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow 2010
Hacienda Bridge, Updated August 2, 2010


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


1,600


1-M
ay


8-M
ay


15
-M


ay


22
-M


ay


29
-M


ay
5-J


un


12
-Ju


n


19
-Ju


n


26
-Ju


n
3-J


ul


10
-Ju


l


17
-Ju


l


24
-Ju


l


31
-Ju


l


7-A
ug


14
-A


ug


21
-A


ug


28
-A


ug
4-S


ep


11
-S


ep


18
-S


ep


25
-S


ep
2-O


ct


Fl
ow


 (c
fs


)
2009


2007


2000-08 Avg


2010


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000







Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10 Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11 Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11 Jul-11 2012
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease Completed
2009 Water Rates Revision Completed
Water Rates Changes


•        Board Direction on Rate Changes
•        Prop 218 Mailing
•        Public Hearing on Proposed Rates
•        Adopt Rates with Budget


2010-11 BudgetPreparation
•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Di i  


December-10


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 


d•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-10


•        Approve Budget May-10
2011-12 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 


December-11


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-11


•        Approve Budget May-11
Capital Projects


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Starts


April-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Completed


October-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2 Construction 
St t•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2 Construction 
Completed
•        Update District CIP


2010 Urban Water Management Plan July-11


Water Rights Completed, 
License June 


Contract Negotiations 
•        Start Negotiations Preparation December-09
•        Negotiations Start April-10
•        End of Contract June-10


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-11


Policies and Procedures
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: August 5, 2010 



